

## Meeting Minutes Town of North Hampton Zoning Board of Adjustment Tuesday, October 28, 2014 at 6:30pm Town Hall, 231 Atlantic Avenue North Hampton, NH 03862

1	These Minutes were prepared as a reasonable summary of the essential content of the Meeting, not as a transcription. All exhibits mentioned, or incorporated by reference, in these Minutes are a part of the official Case Record and available for inspection at the Town Offices.
	Attendance:
(	<b>Members present:</b> David Buber, Chair; Phelps Fullerton, Vice Chair, George Lagassa, and Charles Gordon. (4) Mrs. Wilson was seated as the 5 <sup>th</sup> Primary Member after being appointed by the Board and Sworn In by the Town Clerk.
	Members absent: None.
•	Alternates present: Dennis Williams, Jonathan Pinette and Lisa Wilson. (3)
,	Administrative Staff present: Wendy Chase, Recording Secretary.
	Preliminary Matters; Procedure; Swearing in of Witnesses (RSA 673:14 and 15);
l	Recording Secretary Report
(	Chair Buber Called the Meeting to Order at 6:30 p.m.
!	<u>Pledge of Allegiance</u> -Chair Buber invited the Board Members and those in attendance to rise for a Pledge of Allegiance and noted that reciting the Pledge of Allegiance is solely for those who choose to do so and failure, neglect or inability to do so will have no bearing on the decision making of the Board or the rights of an individual to appear before, and request relief from, the Board.
	Introduction of Members and Alternates - Chair Buber introduced Members of the Board and the
	Alternates who were present (as identified above).
	<u>Recording Secretary Report -</u> Ms. Chase reported that the, October 28, 2014 Meeting <u>Agenda</u> was properly published in the October 16, 2014 edition of the <u>Portsmouth Herald</u> , and, posted at the Library, Town Clerk's Office, Town Office and on the Town's website.
(	Chair Buber then briefly explained the Board's operating <u>Rules and Procedures</u> to those present.

Disclaimer – these minutes are prepared by the Recording Secretary within five (5) business days as required by NH RSA 91A:2,II. They will not be finalized until approved by majority vote of the Zoning Board of Adjustment.

Page **2** of **13** October 28, 2014

### **ZBA Meeting Minutes**

43 Swearing In Of Witnesses – Pursuant to RSA 673: 14 and 15, Chair Buber swore in all those who were 44 present and who intended to act as witnesses and/or offer evidence to the Board in connection with any 45 Case or matter to be heard at the Meeting. 46 47 Chair Buber convened the meeting at 6:30 p.m. 48 49 Minutes – September 30, 2014 – 50 51 The Board reviewed the Meeting Minutes of September 30, 2014. Minor typographical errors were 52 corrected. 53 54 Mr. Lagassa moved and Mr. Gordon seconded the motion to approve the September 30, 2014 Special 55 Meeting Minutes as corrected. 56 The vote was unanimous in favor of the motion (4-0-0). 57 I. Alternates and Primary Member vetting process. The candidates will address the 58 Zoning Board and field questions, if any, from the Members. 59 60 **Primary Member Candidates:** 61 62 63 Jonathan Pinette, 108 Post Road – Mr. Pinette addressed the Board. Mr. Pinette said that he is very 64 qualified to become a Primary Member of the Board. He has been an Alternate Member of the Zoning 65 Board for a number of years and has sat on quite a few cases where he has given his opinions and made 66 judgments. 67 68 There were no questions from the Board Members. 69 70 Lisa Wilson, 9 Runnymede Drive – Mrs. Wilson addressed the Board. Mrs. Wilson said that she has been 71 an Alternate Member of the ZBA for approximately 3 ½ years. She prepared a summary from the letter 72 she submitted to the Board in October. She thanked the Board for the opportunity to be considered for 73 the vacant seat on the Zoning Board of Adjustment. She said if appointed she would continue to bring to 74 the Board the ability to assess each application in a fair and equitable manner in accordance with NH 75 RSA's. She said she has no conflicts pertaining to land holdings or enterprises that may benefit 76 financially or otherwise from decisions the ZBA may make. She said that she and her husband own 77 property in North Hampton, and they have nothing to gain by virtue of variance requests that may be 78 brought before the Board. She said that, if appointed, it would be an honor to be a Primary Member of 79 the Zoning Board of Adjustment. 80 81 There were no questions from the Board Members. 82 83 Mr. Lagassa moved that the Board conduct an Election where Board Members each declare their 84 personal choice. 85 86 Chair Buber said that Mr. Lagassa's motion is different from the Board's Rules of Procedures. He 87 explained that the Board's past practices were that a Member would make a motion to nominate a

- Candidate and if there is no *second* to the motion then that Candidate is finished; if there is a *second* to
  the motion the Board then votes and it becomes a function of how many votes they get.
- 90
- 91 Mr. Fullerton said before making a motion he wanted to state that he thought both Mr. Pinette and Mrs.
- 92 Wilson would make good Board Members, and the Board is fortunate that both have indicated an
- 93 interest in the position. He referred to Mrs. Wilson's experience with the Rockingham Planning
- 94 Commission and Conservation Commission work.95
- 96 Mr. Fullerton moved and Mr. Lagassa seconded the motion to nominate Lisa Wilson to be the Primary
   97 Member on the ZBA with a term to expire March 2015.
- 9899 Mr. Gordon asked if there were any other motions to entertain before voting on Mr. Fullerton's motion.
- 100101 Chair Buber said that there is a motion made and seconded.
- 102
- 103 Mr. Gordon asked that if the nominee is elected would that mean that there will be no more 104 nominations, and Chair Buber said that was correct.
- 105
- 106 Discussion ensued on the appointment process.
- 107
- 108 Chair Buber said he wanted to be fair and was willing to entertain a different process; Mr. Lagassa could109 withdraw his second to Mr. Fullerton's motion.
- 110
- 111 Mr. Gordon said that he didn't want to prolong the process; he just felt that there should be an
- 112 opportunity that if there were another Candidate that could be supported by someone on the Board,
- that that Member of the Board should have an opportunity to nominate them.
- 114
- 115 Mr. Gordon said that he agrees with Mr. Fullerton that both Candidates would make good Primary
- 116 Members, but Mr. Pinette was the first to propose himself; Mr. Gordon moved that he be nominated to
- serve out the remainder of the vacant Primary seat. Mr. Lagassa said he would be willing to *second* that
- motion if it were compatible. Chair Buber explained that there cannot be two motions on the floor.
  Mr. Lagassa did not *second* Mr. Gordon's motion. The motion failed.
- 119 120
- 121 The Vote passed in favor of the motion to appoint Lisa Wilson to serve as a Primary Member of the 122 Zoning Board until March 2015. (3 in favor, 1 opposed and 0 abstentions). Mr. Gordon voted against.
- 122
- 124 Mrs. Chase filled out the Oath of Office document and the Chair signed it. Mrs. Wilson went to the Town 125 Clerk's Office and was officially Sworn In.
- 126
- 127 Alternate Member Candidates:
- 128

Mark Janos, 77 Winnicut Road – Mr. Janos addressed the Board. Mr. Janos said that he has a great deal
 of experience in zoning matters and planning matters and would be an asset to the Board. He said he is
 an Attorney in Newburyport, MA with a license to practice in New Hampshire. He has taken matters to
 Superior Court and Supreme Court regarding zoning issues and thinks he would be a benefit to the
 Board.

- 135 There were no questions from the Board Members.
- 136
- Mr. John Anthony Simmons, Jr. sent a letter of interest to the Board to serve as an Alternate Memberfor a two or three year term. Mr. Simmons was not present.
- 139
- Robin Reid, 279 Atlantic Avenue Mrs. Reid said that she has lived in North Hampton for 21 years and grew up in a family that her Mother was a Select Board member on Cape Cod. She said she has a diverse background ranging from banking, to computer operations manager, to real estate. She feels that she has an excellent ability to examine the facts and make decisions based on the law. She owns no land other than her own home in North Hampton and has no hidden agenda nor would she gain personally from any decision she would make in the future.
- 145 146
- 147 There were no questions from the Board Members.
- 149 Mrs. Wilson returned to the meeting with her signed Oath of Office and was seated at the table.
- 150

148

- 151 Mr. Fullerton said that he has known Mrs. Reid and her husband David for 20 years and could attest to 152 her dedication and commitment to a wide range of community projects and endeavors.
- 153
- Mr. Fullerton moved and Mrs. Wilson seconded the motion to nominate Mrs. Robin Reid as an
   Alternate Member to the Zoning Board.
- 156 The vote passed in favor of the motion (3 in favor, 1 opposed and 1 abstention). Mr. Gordon voted 157 against. Mr. Lagassa abstained.
- 158
- Mrs. Reid agreed to serve a term to expire in March 2016. Mrs. Chase filled out the Oath of Office
  document and Mrs. Reid went over to the Town Clerk's Office and was Sworn In. Mrs. Reid returned to
  the meeting.
- 162

## 163 II. Unfinished Business:

- A Motion for Rehearing as required by RSA 677:2 has been filed by Attorney Peter Imse on behalf of Mary Virginia Weldon requesting the Zoning Board of Adjustment rehear the Historic Runnymede Farm, LLC Appeal and reverse its prior Decision of July 22, 2014 regarding ZBA Case #2014:04. The Motion filed is for Zoning Board Action, Discussion and Vote. No public testimony, input or introduction of evidence will be allowed. This is continued from the September 23, 2014 Meeting.
- 170
- 171 In attendance for this Motion for Rehearing:
- 172 Attorney Peter Imse, Counsel to Mary Virginia Weldon
- 173 Attorney William Beckett, Co-Counsel to Historic Runnymede Farm, LLC
- 174
- 175 Mr. Gordon and Mrs. Wilson recused themselves.
- 176
- 177 Chair Buber seated Mr. Pinette for Mr. Gordon and seated Mr. Williams for Mrs. Wilson.

- 179 Chair Buber referred to <u>RSA 677:2</u> <u>Rehearing Procedures Before Board of Adjustment, Board of</u>
- 180 <u>Appeals and Local Legislative Body</u>. Any person directly affected may apply for a rehearing in respect to
- 181 any matter determined in the action or proceeding, specifying in the motion for rehearing the ground
- 182 therefore; and the Board may grant such rehearing if in its opinion good reason therefore is stated in the

- motion. He also referred to <u>RSA 677:3</u> A motion for rehearing made under <u>RSA 677:2</u> shall set forth *fully every ground upon which it is claimed that the decision or order complained of is unlawful or unreasonable.*Chair Buber did not see the reason for a lot of dialogue.
  Resulting from a Decision of the Planning Board on April 1, 2014, Historic Runnymede Farm, LLC
  applied to the Zoning Board of Adjustment with a request of an Appeal of a Decision of an
- Administrative Officer to reverse the April 1, 2014 Decision of the Planning Board, that the proposed arena is a "riding stable".
- The Zoning Board determined that HRF, because of its existence for 90+ years, did not need a
   Special Exception in this particular case. The Board also voted that the proposed "riding arena"
   is not a "riding stable".
- Chair Buber said that, in his opinion, the Board did nothing illegal or unreasonable and that is the narrow
  issue the Board is looking at that would be the grounds to approve the Rehearing. If the Board feels that
  they did nothing illegal or unreasonable then the request for Rehearing should be denied.
- 200 Mr. Pinette said he had nothing to add to the Chair's comments.
- 201

199

195

Mr. Fullerton said he interprets the RSA as a very narrow scope of review and it is up to the Board to
 determine if the Decision made was unlawful or unreasonable and illegal.

204

Mr. Lagassa said he disagreed. He said the Chair framed it in such a way to make it extremely narrow hence; limiting what the Board can *hear* this evening. One of the objections raised by Attorney Imse is that it was improperly framed in the beginning. One of the reasons it is unreasonable is the way it was proposed in the beginning, too narrow hence; unreasonable. He said that there are other items under the petition that is not within the scope the Chair wants to narrow it to. In his opinion it renders the Decision made by the Zoning Board unreasonable.

211

Chair Buber said that he has discussed this Motion for Rehearing with Town Counsel and, it is of his
opinion, that the Board keeps it narrow in scope of the lawfulness and reasonableness of the Board's
Decision on July 22, 2014.

215

Mr. Williams agreed with Mr. Pinette, Mr. Fullerton and Mr. Buber. He said when he made his decision
on July 22, 2014, and reviewed the Motion for Rehearing, he did it with a lot of consideration. He said
the Board took the time to walk the property and to consider what was fair to both "Parties". He said he
rests on the decision he made on July 22, 2014.

220

221 Chair Buber said there were only two considerations the Board was to give on the original application.

222 One was for the Special Exception for a Riding Stable, and the other was whether the Riding Arena was

going to be a Riding Stable. He said that he didn't think the Board's decisions on the Appeal and Special
Exception were either unlawful or unreasonable.

225

226 Mr. Pinette moved and Mr. Williams seconded the motion to deny the request for a Rehearing on the

- basis that the Board followed procedure and the decisions were reasonable and lawful.
- The vote passed in favor of the motion (4 in favor, 1 opposed and 0 abstentions). Mr. Lagassa voted against.
- 229 230

- 231 Mr. Pinette and Mr. Williams stepped down.
- 232 Mrs. Wilson and Mr. Gordon assumed their seats.
- 233

#### 234 **III.** New Business:

235

1. 2014:10 – Applicant Jarrod Patten, 1 Fern Road, North Hampton, NH 03862. Owner: Same as 236 237 Applicant; Property location: 1 Fern Road, North Hampton, NH 03862; M/L: 008-023-001; Zoning 238 District: R-1 Residential High Density. The Applicant requests a variance under the provisions of 239 Article IV, Section 405.3 to allow an accessory apartment of 871 square-feet where 800 square-feet 240 is the maximum allowed by Special Exception in a structure which did not exist at the time Article V, 241 Section 513 was adopted.

- 242
- 243 In attendance for this application:
- 244 Attorney Bernard Pelech, Counsel to the Applicant
- 245 Jarrod Patten, Owner/Applicant
- 246

247 Mr. Fullerton read the Case description into the record.

248

249 Mr. Pelech explained that Mr. Patten has owned the property for quite some time and built a house on

250 the lot in 2006. He is seeking to put in an accessory apartment but does not meet all of the criteria

251 required to obtain a Special Exception from the Zoning Board under Article V, Section 513. The Applicant

252 seeks a variance from Article IV, Section 405.3- Prohibited Uses for all Districts, because the property

253 doesn't conform to the dimensional requirements of the single family lot; the building was not in

- 254 existence when Section 513 was adopted in 1990 (513.2); and the apartment is 871 square feet where the ordinance requires the apartment to be between 400 and 800 square feet (513.5).
- 255 256
- 257 Mr. Pelech addressed the five (5) criteria of the Variance Test:
- 258

259 1. Granting this variance will not be contrary to the public interest nor, would

260 2. Granting this variance the spirit of the ordinance is observed.

261

262 Mr. Pelech said that the test for whether or not granting a variance would be contrary to the public 263 interest and whether or not it was consistent with the spirit and intent of the ordinance is a two part 264 either/or test. The Supreme Court has stated that if granting the variance would not result in a 265 substantial change in the characteristics of the neighborhood or threaten public health, safety, and 266 welfare, then granting the variance would not be contrary to the public interest and granting the 267 variance would be consistent with the spirit and intent of the ordinance. He said that the property is 268 next door to four commercial apartments and abuts the I-B/R Zone. The proposal will not change the 269 character of the neighborhood or threaten the public's health, safety or welfare.

270

#### 271 3. Granting this variance substantial justice is done.

272

273 Mr. Pelech said that the hardship upon the owner were the variance to be denied is not outweighed by any benefit to the general public. There seems to be no reason set forth in the ordinance as to why the

- 275 structure must have existed in 1990 in order to qualify for a special exception as an accessory
- 276 apartment. The existence of an accessory apartment would not result in overcrowding of the property. If

the variance were denied the hardship on Mr. Patten would not be outweighed by some benefit to thegeneral public.

- 279
- 280 281

## 4. Granting this variance the values of surrounding properties are not diminished.

282 Mr. Pelech said that there will be no external changes to the structure or the site. There would be no 283 impact to the surrounding properties given the fact that the building would remain the same on the 284 exterior, the site would remain the same and thus there would be no aspects of the property which 285 would diminish the values of the surrounding properties.

286

# By not granting this variance, literal enforcement of the provisions of the Ordinance would result in an unnecessary hardship.

289
290 Mr. Pelech said that there are special conditions with regard to this property given its location so close
291 to Route 1. It is surrounded by commercial uses. It will not add stress to the highway system and will not
292 over-intensify the use of the property. Because of the surrounding commercial uses and the location of

the lot, the lot has special conditions such that to literally enforce the ordinance to prohibit the

accessory apartment would result in an unnecessary hardship. This is not a case of an individual

attempting to put an accessory apartment in a residential subdivision or a strictly residential area. Given

the property's location and surrounded uses, this is certainly a reasonable use.

297

Mr. Pelech said that, it is the Applicant's belief, that the variance requested meets the five (5) criterianecessary for the Board to grant it.

300

Mr. Patten explained that the garage on the property is not changing and will not be used by future
tenants. The entrance to the apartment is on the back side of the house. Mr. Patten lives on the second
floor of the dwelling. He also stated that he could make the apartment smaller to meet the size
requirement by blocking off a closet, but the way the house was framed in 2006, it would make more
sense to keep it as the proposed 871 square-feet rather than the required 800 square-feet. Mr. Patten

has an approved 4-bedroom septic system; he has three bedrooms and proposes one bedroom for the

- 307 apartment totaling four.
- 308

309 Discussion ensued on the request for relief from <u>Article IV, Section 405.3</u>.

310

311 Mr. Pelech said that he was directed to apply for a variance to <u>Article IV, Section 405.3</u> and <u>Article V,</u>

312 <u>Section 513</u>. The Applicant did not meet the provisions 513.2 and 513.5 of the Special Exception for

Accessory Apartments; therefore applied for a variance under <u>Article IV, Section 405.3 – Prohibited Uses</u>
 for All <u>Districts.</u>

315

Mr. Gordon said that Section 405.3 prohibits accessory apartments in Zone R-1 unless the provisions
under <u>Article V, Section 513</u> are satisfied. So, because he needs relief from Sections 513.2 and 513.5,
and doesn't qualify for a Special Exception, he can only get the accessory apartment through the
variance relief.

320

321 Mr. Fullerton agreed with Mr. Gordon.

322

323 Chair Buber said he agreed in this particular case.

325 Mrs. Wilson said that is was convoluted.

326

Mr. Gordon said that if there were no Special Exception for accessory apartment then an applicant
 would have to apply for a variance to Section 405.3 – Prohibited Uses For All Districts.

329

Mr. Lagassa agreed that it was confusing and wondered if there were any abutters that may have been
 confused with the variance relief requested. He did comment that the end result would be the same.

- Mr. Pelech reiterated the hardship criterion. He said there are special conditions of the lot because of its
   close proximity to the I-B/R District and Route 1, and it is surrounded by commercial uses. It is a
- transition lot between commercial uses and residential homes that run down Fern Road. If there are
- special conditions with the land the Board needs to look to see if there is a reasonable relationship as to
- the purpose and intent of the ordinance as it is applied to this particular lot. He said he believes in 1990 the purpose and intent of the Ordinance was to allow accessory apartments; if they met certain criteria
- 339 (this proposal meets some but not all of the criteria), and if there is no fair and substantial relationship
- between the purpose of the Ordinance applied to this particular piece of property, it is a reasonable use
- of the property; if the house was built in 1990, and a bit smaller, it would be allowed by Special
- 342 Exception.
- 343
- Chair Buber opened the Public Hearing to those in Favor of, or Opposed to, the Application.
- 345 There was no public comment.
- 347 Mr. Wilson requested to speak as a Neutral party to the Application.
- 348

346

- 349 Chair Buber allowed Mr. Wilson to speak.
- 350

351 Phil Wilson, 9 Runnymede Drive – said that he is neutral about the application, but is confused about the 352 nature of the application. He said that he has been a Planning Board Member for years and at one point 353 the Planning Board thought about presenting to the Legislative Body an ordinance allowing accessory 354 apartments in all zoning districts in respect to increasing affordable housing in Town. The Special 355 Exception was written in 1990 to preserve vested rights for people who owned homes constructed 356 before 1990 and might have wanted to put in an accessory apartment. Section 513 was created to 357 prohibit accessory apartments while preserving vested rights. Mr. Wilson referred to Section 513.1 that 358 the property must conform to the dimensional requirements of a single family lot; the subject lot is .49 359 acres. He said this is a request to have two dwelling units on one lot. He also referred to Section 501 – 360 Nonconforming uses – a non-conforming use may be continued but may not be expanded, extended or 361 changed unless to a conforming use. He referred to Section 406.4.2 – multiple dwelling lot and yard 362 requirements, and said that the applicant should request relief from this provision also because the 363 apartment appears to be the same size as the remaining residence; it would be more like a multiple 364 dwelling than an apartment, and because it is not in the I-B/R zone and, doesn't meet the yard and lot 365 requirements, the applicant would need relief from this provision. Mr. Wilson said the way the 366 application is presented is very confusing, and that anyone that wants to put in an accessory apartment 367 that doesn't satisfy the criteria of the Special Exception should apply under the provisions of the Zoning 368 Ordinances that would allow them to do what they wanted to do. 369

- 370 Mr. Pelech said there is approximately 2,600 square feet on the main dwelling. It is three times larger 371 than the accessory apartment.
- 372

373 Chair Buber questioned the relief requested. 374 375 Mr. Fullerton said that Section 405.3 lists the permitted uses and the proposal would not be a permitted 376 use because it does not meet the criteria under the Special Exception provisions for accessory 377 apartments. 378 379 Mr. Gordon agreed and said that because it does not meet the requirements under a Special Exception, 380 it is prohibited and requires a variance to prohibited uses, 405.3, and it is his belief, that the Applicant 381 didn't even have to make reference to the three provisions under the Special Exception Section 513. 382 383 Mr. Pelech said that Ms. Chase received an opinion from an Attorney at the Local Government Center 384 who said that you cannot get a variance to provisions of a Special Exception. He said if the Board is not 385 comfortable acting on the application they can continue the case to next month and re-advertise, but he 386 was told he cannot apply for a variance from Section 513. 387 388 Mrs. Wilson commented that if the Board were to grant the variance, she takes issue with reducing the 389 proposed size down from 871 square-feet to 800 square-feet because the building footprint is already 390 there. 391 392 Chair Buber commented that there were a lot of missing pieces to the puzzle and he is not comfortable 393 taking action on this Application. 394 395 Mrs. Wilson said that the Board needs to grant relief on the proper sections of the Ordinance. 396 397 Mr. Pelech left to attend a meeting in Portsmouth. 398 399 Mr. Patten asked for guidance from the Board. 400 401 Mr. Gordon said that the Board should be specific on what the Applicant should be requesting relief 402 from. 403 404 Chair Buber said that it is up to the Applicant to specify the relief he is seeking. It is too complicated to 405 come up with specifics without taking hours to review. 406 407 Mr. Patten requested a continuance of his case to the November 25, 2014 meeting. 408 409 Chair Buber moved and Mrs. Wilson seconded the motion to continue Case #2014:10 to the 410 November 25, 2014 Meeting. 411 The vote passed in favor of the motion (3 in favor, 1 opposed and 1 abstention). Mr. Lagassa 412 abstained. Mr. Gordon voted against. 413 414 2. 2014:11 – Applicant Eric Buck, Terrain Planning & Design, 1 Hardy Road, Bedford, NH 03110. 415 Owner: Two Juniper Road LLC, 1 Woodridge Lane, North Hampton, NH 03862: Property location: 416 Hiltunen, Nash & Maguire Dental Office, 2 Juniper Road, North Hampton, NH 03862; M/L: 017-417 001-000; Zoning District: I-B/R Industrial Business Residential. The Applicant requests the 418 following variances: 1. Article IV, Section 406.1 – relief from the front yard setback on a lot abutting 419 more than one street. The proposed addition will encroach into the 50-foot front yard setback (all 420 three roads) approximately 21' 1" into the Woodridge Road setback; encroach 4' 6" into the Juniper

421	Road setback; encroach 8' 9" into the Lafayette Road setback. 2. Article IV, Section 406.8 –
422	Landscape buffer. The proposed addition will encroach into the required 10-foot buffer to
423	accommodate adequate parking lot layout and meet the parking lot standard configuration
424	dimension while maintaining a landscape buffer less than 1-foot. 3. <u>Article V, Section 501.5</u> – Non-
425	conforming Uses – to allow the expansion of a structure on a lot that is non-conforming.
426	
427	In attendance for this Application:
428	Eric Buck, Applicant/Representative to the Owners of Two Juniper Road, LLC.
429	Dr. Maquire, Co-owner, Two Juniper Road, LLC
430	
431	Mr. Fullerton read the Case description into the record.
432	
433	It was determined that a Site Plan review from the Planning Board will be required if the Applicant
434	receives the requested variances.
435	
436	Mr. Buck presented the case. He said that the building, as it exists, does not meet life safety issues. The
437	renovations are to include the extension of the office and new treatment and hygiene areas. The
438	property is unique that it abuts a road on three sides of the property, which requires a 50-foot setback.
439	The Juniper road side will have 21 parking spaces where 16 spaces are required.
440	The sumper roud side with have 21 parking spaces where 10 spaces are required.
441	Variance Request from Article IV, Section 406.1
442	
443	1. Granting this variance will not be contrary to the public interest.
444	1. Granting this variance with not be contrary to the public interest.
445	This is an existing non-conforming structure with portions of the building already within the setback
446	limits. Expansion of the building will allow for better health and safety accommodations within the
447	building.
448	bunung.
449	2. Granting this variance the spirit of the ordinance is observed.
450	2. Granting this variance the spirit of the ordinance is observed.
451	The spirit of the ordinance is to protect abutting properties; the proposed construction will not affect
452	any adjacent buildings greater than what is currently impacted.
453	any adjacent buildings greater than what is currently impacted.
455	3. Granting this variance substantial justice is done.
455	
455	Substantial Justice is done because it will allow for the building to be brought up to current life and
450	safety regulations, as well as, provide opportunity for the office to increase business with the addition of
	additional chairs.
458	
459	A Creating this verips of the values of surrounding meansuries are not diminished
460	4. Granting this variance the values of surrounding properties are not diminished.
461	The values of summary dimensions and the second dimensional The summary second
462	The values of surrounding properties are not diminished. The proposed construction will not affect any
463	adjacent buildings greater than what is currently impacted. The values of adjacent properties will be
464	improved as the overall aesthetic of this property will add to that of the existing neighborhood.
465	
466	
467	
468	

469	
470	5. By not granting this variance, literal enforcement of the provisions of the Ordinance would result in
471	an unnecessary hardship.
472	
473	The current building doesn't meet the capacity needs of the dental office. Substantial financial hardship
474	would be caused if the business was not allowed to expand in its current facility.
475	
476	Mrs. Wilson voiced concern about the parked cars being so close to the highway; there is not much of a
477	buffer.
478	
479	Mr. Buck said that there will be a retaining wall and curb stops and an 8-foot grass buffer between the
480	parking lot and Route 1.
481	
482	Mr. Buck explained that they are not extending beyond what is already there; the only encroachment is
483	8' 9" into the 50-foot setback on Lafayette Road. The landscape buffer will be improved on the
484	residential sides of the property. There is not enough room for the delivery trucks to turn in the
485	proposed parking lot so they have added an accessory drop off area that will double as overflow parking.
486	It is currently a gravel area where the Doctors and Receptionists park. They receive deliveries once a
487	week.
488	
489	Mr. Lagassa asked about snow removal. Mr. Buck said that they will create pockets within the landscape
490	to put excess snow.
491	
492	The landscape buffer was discussed. Chair Buber asked what kind of compromise could be made.
493	
494	Mr. Buck thought they could come up with a five foot landscape buffer.
495	
496	Chair Buber opened the Public Hearing to those in Favor of, or Neutral to, the project.
497	There was no public comment.
498	
499	Chair Buber opened the Public Hearing to those Opposed to the project.
500	
501	Jack McCarthy, 3 Juniper Road – said that he lives across the Road from this property and his current
502	view is woods. He said after reviewing the plans it looks like there will end up being no buffer and his
503	view will be of Route 1. He said that would essentially deteriorate the value of his property. He said he
504	doesn't see any provisions to protect the residential area, and he would like to preserve his view and not
505	look at a parking lot; he is also concerned about the noise after the current buffer of wooded area is
506	removed.
507	
508	Mr. Buck said that they can put some type of tree 8' to 10' where the fencing is to help screen. He said
509	they could put a row of trees along the retaining wall beginning at the driveway entrance running along
510	to the corner of the property. He said there is a 3' to 6' State setback requirement for street/road
511	intersections.
512	
513	Mr. Hilitunen was a co-owner of the property and recently sold his share of the practice but is still
514	employed there. He explained that he is an immediate abutter to the Woodridge side of the property.
515	He explained that there will be a dense vegetated buffer on the Juniper Road side and the Woodridge
516	side to put those kinds of barriers in place.

517

520

522

524

528

- 518 <u>Jayson Spring, 4 Woodridge Lane</u> said he was curious as to what type of buffer was going in on the 519 Woodridge Lane side of the property.
- 521 Mr. Buck said that they plan to plant arborvitae trees on that side.
- 523 Chair Buber closed the Public Hearing.
- 525 Mr. Gordon moved and Mr. Fullerton seconded the motion to grant the variance to <u>Article IV, Section</u>
- 526 **<u>406.1</u>** to allow the setback intrusion as proposed.
- 527 The vote was unanimous in favor of the motion (5-0-0).
- 529 Article IV, Section 406.8 Landscape buffer
- 531 Chair Buber read Zoning Ordinance 406.8 into the record: *Industrial-Business/Residential lots located in*
- the I-B/R zone shall include a landscaped buffer area around the perimeter of the lot. This landscaped
   area may not be used for structures, drainage structures, parking or access except where access is
- 534 required and approved.
  - 535
  - 536 Chair Buber said there was discussion from the Board about putting in some type of shrubbery in the537 proposed tight areas where there is very little landscape buffer.
  - 538
    539 Mrs. Wilson said she is concerned because she doesn't know what is permissible from the State and
    540 what type of buffer would be considered safe. She said she would be more comfortable getting an
- 541 expert opinion because the proposed parking area is so close to Lafayette Road.
- 542
  543 Mr. Lagassa suggested the Zoning Board be permissive to the extent of a 5-foot setback instead of a 10544 foot setback that could certainly be corrected by the Planning Board during their Site Plan Review.
  545
- 546 The Board agreed that the landscape buffer is ultimately under the purview of the Planning Board and 547 they may want more than a 5-foot buffer, but the Zoning Board does not want the landscape buffer to 548 be less than 5-feet.
- 549
- 550 Mr. Lagassa moved and Mr. Fullerton seconded the motion to grant the variance to <u>Article IV, Section</u> 551 <u>406.8</u> with respect to the landscape buffer, granting buffers similar to those in the plan put forth, but
- 552 not to be less than a 5-foot setback, subject to the terms and conditions established by Planning
- 553Board Site Plan Review.
- 554 The vote was unanimous in favor of the motion (5-0-0).
- 555
- 556 Chair Buber offered to send the Members a draft copy of the Decision Letters prior to their
- disbursement for review and comment. The Board agreed that that they would like to see a draft copyof the Decision letters.
- 559
- 560 Article V. Section 501.5
- 561
- 562 Mr. Lagassa moved and Mr. Gordon seconded the motion to grant the variance request to <u>Article V</u>,
- 563 Section 501.1 to allow the expansion of a structure on a lot that is non-conforming.
- 564 **The vote was unanimous in favor of the motion (5-0-0).**

565	
566	Chair Buber reminded the Applicant of 30-day appeal period.
567	
568	Mr. Gordon moved and Mr. Fullerton seconded the motion to adjourn the meeting at 9:16 p.m.
569	The vote was unanimous in favor of the motion (5-0-0).
570	
571	Respectfully submitted,
572	
573	Wendy V. Chase
574	Recording Secretary
575	
576	Approved November 25, 2014